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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: I am Jay

          3  O'Donovan, Chairman of the Economic Development

          4  Committee. We will do two things today, we will have

          5  a short organizational meeting, and then we will

          6  take a vote on a new Economic Development Zone or

          7  Empowerment Zone.

          8                 I am joined by Councilwoman Eldridge

          9  from Manhattan, Angel Rodriguez from Brooklyn, Ken

         10  Fisher from Brooklyn. Other Council Members are in

         11  the next room, after the hearing they will be coming

         12  out so we will start this now.

         13                 Good afternoon, and welcome to

         14  today's organizational meeting by the Committee on

         15  Economic Development.

         16                 I am Councilman Jerome X. O'Donovan,

         17  Chairman. I wanted to introduce those members of the

         18  Committee, which I just did, and happy New Year,

         19  everybody, incidently.

         20                 Today we will be taking the time to

         21  set the review of the Committee's activities in 2000

         22  and to set priorities for the upcoming year. The

         23  Committee staff has provided each member a list of

         24  the Committee hearings, topics from 2000, and a

         25  tentative schedule of Economic Development hearings
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          2  for the first two months of 2001.

          3                 The dates and topics, of course, are

          4  subject to change, as you all know.

          5                 In 2000 the Committee continued its

          6  oversight of the City's Economic Development

          7  Programs and provided much needed emphasis in

          8  several areas.

          9                 In February, the Committee with Land

         10  Use, conducted an oversight hearing on the

         11  Governor's Island redevelopment proposal. As a

         12  result, Resolution No. 1344 in support of the

         13  redevelopment of the Island, sponsored by myself and

         14  Council Member Eisland, was introduced in May.

         15                 To date, unfortunately, no added

         16  federal action has been taken, and I hope we have

         17  not lost a golden opportunity for New York City.

         18                 In February, the Committee conducted

         19  an additional oversight hearing on the City's

         20  minority And Woman-owned Businesses program. This

         21  resulted in the Committee support of an additional

         22  $150,000 budget allocation, increasing to $300,000

         23  for Fiscal Year 2001, to the Department of Business

         24  Services to conduct a disparate impact study for

         25  Minority and Woman-owned Businesses contracting with
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          2  the City.

          3                 If DBS still refuses to conduct a

          4  study, I believe the Committee would support the

          5  Council's own initiative to fund such a study.

          6                 In May the Committee conducted an

          7  important hearing on the future of garment industry,

          8  which I hope will lead to additional City policies.

          9  On the legislative front, the Committee in February

         10  passed Intro. No. 459-A, a bill to amend the public

         11  markets law, Local Law 28 of '97, and in March we

         12  overrode the Mayor's veto of the bill, which went on

         13  to win full City Council approval. And this year I

         14  want the Committee to continue its initiative on

         15  conducting borough-based oversight hearings on

         16  Economic Development activities in each of the

         17  boroughs, concentrating on the outer boroughs.

         18                 A second hearing was held in Queens

         19  last June. I will call upon each of the members and

         20  the respective Borough Presidents to assist the

         21  Committee in highlighting the development activities

         22  in their boroughs.

         23                 In November at the request of the

         24  Council Member Carrion, a follow-up hearing on the

         25  future of the Kings Bridge Armory was conducted
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          2  jointly with the Land Use Committee.

          3                 The potential topics may include an

          4  oversight of the recently announced proposal for

          5  moving the Fulton Fish Market to Hunts Point, the

          6  agreement to keep the New York Stock Exchange on

          7  Wall Street, the impacted capacity of TV and movie

          8  production in New York City, and the status of a

          9  creation of a deep water port in Brooklyn and a

         10  creation of a freight rail link between Brooklyn and

         11  Staten Island or New Jersey.

         12                 On a personal note, I just wanted to

         13  say that all this will be my last year as Chairman

         14  of the Committee. As I look back over my

         15  chairmanship, I am pleased by the direction that the

         16  City is heading on economic development issues, it

         17  could always do more, and the expanded road of the

         18  Committee and the Council on these matters.

         19                 Although I have not always agreed

         20  with the Mayoral Administrations, I have attempted

         21  to provide a fair and open opportunity to present

         22  views on the programs and policies of the City.

         23                 I also want to thank the Committee

         24  staff, as well as other staff, for their dedication,

         25  commitments and professionalism while working for me
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          2  and the members of this Committee over the years. I

          3  look forward to this year.

          4                 At this time I invite members to

          5  discuss their ideas on possible topics for future

          6  hearings or areas they wish to explore or examine.

          7                 Council Member Fisher.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chairman, and for your leadership on the

         10  Economic Development Committee, and also for the

         11  fact that you give us the opportunity to set the

         12  agenda each year.

         13                 One area that we may want to take a

         14  look at, particularly in conjunction with the

         15  Finance Committee, is what the potential impact

         16  would be on New York City from an economic

         17  development point of view if we have another Bush

         18  recession, and there has been a noticeable slow-down

         19  in the economy, and given what has happened with the

         20  diversification of our industries, the question is

         21  if the stock market continues to have difficulty,

         22  what might that mean?

         23                 So, that is my one suggestion.

         24                 I would also ask my colleagues, and

         25  your consent, Mr. Chairman, originally this was
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          2  noticed as an organizational meeting, there has been

          3  an item added to the agenda, and, unfortunately, I

          4  had scheduled myself to be back in the district

          5  prior to knowing that we would be voting, so I would

          6  ask unanimous consent to be recorded as an

          7  affirmative vote on the items that will be taken up

          8  later in the meeting.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Any

         10  objections?

         11                 So ordered.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You are

         15  welcome.

         16                 Councilwoman Eldridge.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

         18  Chairman, did you say there was going to be a list

         19  of suggestive topics that has already been put

         20  together, or are we just putting it together?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: We are going

         22  to put one together.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: I had

         25  mentioned a number of topics, such as --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: All right.

          3                 We suggested, and requested, and I

          4  think that we are working towards it, a hearing on

          5  Number 2 Columbus Circle, which is the disposition

          6  of that property which is now owned by EDC, and the

          7  Columbus Circle Project itself, which one of the

          8  condo owners, the Columbus Center, which is that big

          9  building at Columbus Circle, is being developed as a

         10  condominium, and it has three owners in it now, and

         11  one of the owners, Time Life, Time Warner, has

         12  applied for ICIP, because they have designed the

         13  building as a renovation. This is the building that

         14  we have been discussing for many years, and it, as

         15  we know, is a new building. So, it is an interesting

         16  topic and I don't quite know how we do that.

         17                 And the third topic I would like to

         18  suggest is the Administration's position of the Port

         19  Authority. I think that this has gone on without any

         20  public scrutiny from the Council. Evidently, a

         21  contract was issued and awarded to British Airport

         22  or some such thing, to now be consultants to the

         23  airports -- to the City about the airports, I don't

         24  know if that hearing should be with contracts or

         25  not. I would like to know the size of the contract,
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          2  what the image of it is and what the Mayor, and some

          3  testimony about the management of that.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman

          6  Golden.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I can't wait

          8  to hear the testimony of these lovely people from

          9  Staten Island.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, Council

         11  Member Rodriguez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I want to

         13  echo the remarks of Council Member Fisher for giving

         14  us the opportunity to, I guess, contribute to the

         15  future actions of this Committee.

         16                 I think there are a couple of things

         17  that we should address as the year moves forward.

         18                 We put some money into emergent

         19  industries fund, and I think that EDC has not bee

         20  forthcoming with information. As you know, I am the

         21  Chair of the Subcommittee that is under this

         22  Committee and we have tried desperately to have them

         23  reach out to us and give us information and they

         24  haven't. So, I think that we should really figure

         25  out a way and find out what is going on with that
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          2  fund because we put that money in there quite awhile

          3  ago and I believe the funds still have not been

          4  dispersed.

          5                 In addition to that you mentioned the

          6  disparity study, and I think, again, that was money

          7  that we put in because we think that Woman and

          8  Minority-owned Businesses, we need to figure out

          9  what their share of the pie is, and it is my belief

         10  that they are not getting the proper share in, and

         11  we need to get this study done so that we can move

         12  forward, and I think that it is important that we do

         13  that.

         14                 And last, well, actually I have two

         15  more things, as you know, there has been a lot of

         16  press recently with regard to mixed use housing in

         17  Brooklyn, and I think that mixed use housing and the

         18  whole zoning issue, though, it is a Land Use issue,

         19  I think that we have to consider it with regard to

         20  the economic development of our City. I think that

         21  if Land Use is going to have a hearing, I think they

         22  maybe should consider doing it in conjunction with

         23  this Committee because I think that economic

         24  opportunities there are really very big.

         25                 And, lastly, waterfront development,
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          2  we keep letting other people take the lead on that

          3  and I think it is time that the City Council steps

          4  to the plate and the Port Authority, the

          5  Administration, I mean you know that we are a player

          6  and we have to have some type of oversight hearing

          7  on what type of waterfront development is going on

          8  in our City.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, very

         11  good.

         12                 And as we go along, as you know, any

         13  new hearings that the Committee members want we will

         14  address, and if need be, we will take the Committee

         15  to the districts that you are in, the Borough that

         16  you are in, and you have done that and we go on the

         17  road for you. So, we look forward to this last year,

         18  my last year anyway.

         19                 In any event --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It is not

         21  your last year in public service.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Maybe not.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Hopefully

         24  not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: In any event,
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          2  happy New Year to everybody incidently, and a

          3  healthy one and a successful one.

          4                 What we will do now is we will take a

          5  vote. First we will hear testimony and take a vote

          6  on a new proposed West Shore Empire Zone on Staten

          7  Island. It is an EDZ, and what we will do is give a

          8  little short testimony on it.

          9                 That the socioeconomic data for the

         10  proposed zone points to a tremendous need to create

         11  new opportunities for employment and reduce poverty.

         12  Significantly, 200 of the 400 businesses in the

         13  proposed zone, located in the eligible census

         14  tracks, this signals that with incentives for growth

         15  and additional investment, residents of these

         16  communities will be able to access many of the jobs

         17  to be created.

         18                 This figure also suggests that

         19  tremendous entrepreneurial potential within these

         20  communities.

         21                 Additionally, the proposed West Shore

         22  Zone contains over 500 acres of vacant manufacturing

         23  zoned land prime for development. There is no other

         24  area in the City of New York where such a vast

         25  quantity of vacant contiguous M zone land exists.
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          2                 As a matter of fact, when Vesy Paper

          3  was looking for a New York City location for their

          4  40-acre plant, the only borough they could even

          5  consider was Staten Island, the only area within the

          6  Borough that had 40 sprawling acres for such a

          7  development was the West Shore.

          8                 Simultaneously throughout New York

          9  City, the amount of land available for mid-size

         10  manufacturers is disappearing at an alarming rate.

         11  Landlords will go to great measures to make their

         12  property available for residential and retail use or

         13  even for high technology companies, all of which

         14  typically pay a much higher square foot rent than do

         15  manufacturing companies.

         16                 This contributes to a situation where

         17  mid-sized businesses often leave New York City for

         18  New Jersey or other locations because there is

         19  simply not competitively priced space available to

         20  manufacturing firms.

         21                 So, let's hear testimony from the

         22  agency.

         23                 George Glatter, the Executive

         24  Director.

         25                 Excuse me, Commissioner. I am also
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          2  joined by my colleague from Staten Island, Stephen

          3  Fiala, and Council Member DiBrienza from Brooklyn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman. If I may interrupt for a moment, I

          6  would like to record a vote to help create the West

          7  Shore Empire Zone, which I know we will be voting

          8  on.

          9                 I have a small emergency in which I

         10  have to take care of right now, and I may not get

         11  back in time, and I didn't want to not record my

         12  vote in the affirmative.

         13                 As far as the agenda, this Committee,

         14  as always, under your direction we have taken the

         15  Committee everywhere members want to go looking at

         16  economic development policy, tax policy, big

         17  development, small development, commercial,

         18  manufacturing areas, it is so wonderful to be a part

         19  of this Economic Development Committee, and the only

         20  thing I want to add to the agenda for the time I

         21  have left is, perhaps a survey look at some of the

         22  small, local developments that have occurred, not

         23  unlike Smith Street in my district which has been

         24  written up in many publications, there are so many

         25  examples of these small commercial redevelopments
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          2  that mean so much to neighborhoods throughout the

          3  City, and that might be an interesting thing to

          4  actually get a survey, you know, four of five of

          5  them have some folks in those areas come in and

          6  maybe just give us a sense of how important the

          7  small developments are, because we always know about

          8  the big projects, but these little

          9  neighborhood-based developments that occur,

         10  sometimes with our help, sometimes with capital

         11  help, sometimes with community initiative also mean

         12  a lot to people.

         13                 So, thank you very much. If I can be

         14  recorded in the affirmative, and, again, I look

         15  forward to finishing our term together and serving

         16  with you on this Committee. It has been my favorite

         17  committee at my time here at the Council.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You're in.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Any

         21  objections?

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 Councilman Fiala, would you like to

         24  see anything the Economic Development might want to

         25  address in Staten Island?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Mr. Chairman, I

          3  would echo the words of Council Member DiBrienza,

          4  you have taken this committee wherever we have

          5  wanted to go, and particularly I am grateful for

          6  your leadership on the Charleston issue. We have

          7  some others that you are aware of and your counsel

          8  is aware of, and I am happy to be a cosponsor. You

          9  are the prime sponsor of this upcoming bill, and I

         10  will just wait to hear the testimony.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

         12                 Commissioner.

         13                 MR. GLATTER: Good afternoon, Chairman

         14  O'Donovan, members of the Economic Development

         15  Committee, I am happy to be here.

         16                 My name is George Glatter, and I am

         17  Executive Director of the Neighborhood Development

         18  Division of the Department of Business Services.

         19                 I am here on behalf of DBS

         20  Commissioner Deborah Weeks. I appreciate this

         21  opportunity to meet with you to discuss what is now

         22  potentially one of the most successful business

         23  program the City offers, the Economic Development

         24  Zones, now known as Empire Zones Program.

         25                 One of the key components of New York
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          2  City's development strategy has been to provide

          3  programs and incentives that help maintain and

          4  attract businesses to different areas throughout the

          5  five boroughs. Through lower energy costs, real

          6  estate incentives, and other programs, the City,

          7  through the Department of Business Services, has

          8  taken action designed to revitalize industrial and

          9  commercial neighborhoods.

         10                 The Empire Zones Program, which is

         11  established by the State Legislature and has

         12  undergone major revisions in the past year, provides

         13  us with an opportunity to enhance the benefits

         14  available to industrial and commercial firms moving

         15  to or spanding within some of the City's most

         16  economically disadvantaged areas.

         17                 The State has authorized a creation

         18  of 52 zones statewide. Of these, four zones were

         19  established in the City in 1987 and '88, Port Morris

         20  in the Bronx, South Jamaica in Queens, East New York

         21  in Brooklyn, and East Harlem in Manhattan.

         22                 In 1994 four additional zones were

         23  established in the City, North Shore on Staten

         24  Island, Southwest Brooklyn, Hunt's Point in the

         25  Bronx and Rockaway and Queens.
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          2                 In 1998, the Brooklyn Navy Yard,

          3  North Brooklyn area, was designated the City's Ninth

          4  Zone.

          5                 At the end of 1999, which is the most

          6  period that we have received data from the State,

          7  665 companies in the City were certified to receive

          8  easy benefits. These firms made investments

          9  totalling almost a billion dollars.

         10                 The local law you are considering is

         11  required as part of the City's application to have

         12  the West Shore of Staten Island designated as the

         13  City's Tenth Empire Zone.

         14                 The proposed West Shore Zone, with

         15  its high concentration of vacant land, zoned for

         16  manufacturing, will create new employment

         17  opportunities to City residents.

         18                 Mr. Dan Delehanty, Deputy Director of

         19  the Staten Island's Economic Development

         20  Corporation, will provide specific testimony about

         21  the proposed West Shore Empire Zone.

         22                 The approval of the West Shore Empire

         23  Zone will have no fiscal impact on the City.

         24  Benefits to businesses will be provided by the

         25  state. Again, on behalf of Commissioner Weeks, I
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          2  want to thank you for the opportunity to be here and

          3  urge your support for this legislation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay. Can you

          5  describe the areas served and the operation of your

          6  organization and the zone?

          7                 Or maybe Staten Island EDC can answer

          8  that? They might be better for that.

          9                 MR. GLATTER: I will move over to the

         10  side.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Move over to

         12  the side and we will call Staten Island up.

         13                 MR. DELEHANTY: Good afternoon. My

         14  name is Daniel Delehanty, I am the Deputy Director

         15  with the Staten Island Economic Development

         16  Corporation, I am joined by my colleague James

         17  Anderson, who is the Associate Director of the

         18  Staten Island EDC.

         19                 On the subject of your question, you

         20  have just been handed a detailed map of the proposed

         21  West Shore, which perhaps would begin to answer your

         22  questions.

         23                 The Staten Island Economic

         24  Development Corporation is pleased to have the

         25  opportunity to make a statement to you regarding
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          2  proposed West Shore Empire Zone on Staten Island.

          3                 As you may know, the Staten Island

          4  Economic Development Corporation, SIEDC, has

          5  successfully administered the North Shore Empire

          6  Zone since 1994.

          7                 The North Shore Empire Zone has

          8  realized over 263 million in private investment and

          9  created over 1,500 jobs. It has also been

         10  instrumental in helping to develop over 500

         11  previously vacant acres of land.

         12                 It was also the first zone in the

         13  state to create a zone capital corporation, named

         14  the Commercial Industrial Capital Corporation, or

         15  CICC. I am pleased to report that CICC made its

         16  first loan in October of 2000 to Massa Keita, a West

         17  African food store in Park Hill run by Liberian

         18  immigrants.

         19                 In short, the North Shore of Staten

         20  Island has been one of the State's most successful.

         21                 The proposed West Shore Empire Zone

         22  comprises 700 acres in the West Shore of Staten

         23  Island. It contains over 500 acres, vacant,

         24  manufacturing zone land, prime for development.

         25  There is no other area in the City of New York where
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          2  such a vast quantity of vacant, contiguous m-zoned

          3  land exists.

          4                 While Staten Island has enjoyed a

          5  great deal of the benefits from the prosperous

          6  economy, there are still many communities and people

          7  who have not yet enjoyed the fruits of economic

          8  prosperity.

          9                 The proposed Empire Zone contains

         10  communities where the unemployment poverty rate are

         11  far above City averages.

         12                 The structural imbalance of the

         13  economy is acutely felt when examining the two

         14  eligible census tracks in the proposed zone. These

         15  correspond to Mariners Harbor and Port Ivory. There

         16  over 30 percent of the population lives below the

         17  poverty line, and unemployment hovers at 14 percent.

         18                 The per capita income level in these

         19  tracts is just over $8,000, just less than half of

         20  the level for the entire county.

         21                 Significantly, 200 of the 400

         22  businesses in the proposed zone are located in these

         23  eligible census tracts. This signals that with

         24  incentives for growth and additional investment,

         25  residents of these communities will be able to
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          2  access many of the jobs created. This figure also

          3  suggests that there is a tremendous entrepreneurial

          4  potential within these communities.

          5                 Creating a West Shore Empire Zone

          6  will create hundreds of new jobs. This new economic

          7  opportunity will help revitalize these communities

          8  and create real hope for the future.

          9                 SIEDC, in close collaboration with

         10  the City of New York, and the Borough's business and

         11  civic community, prepared the Empire Zone

         12  application and Plan.

         13                 For the past six years, we have been

         14  reviewing and recording inquiries from businesses

         15  that were not included in the existing North Shore

         16  Empire Zone, who formally requested in writing that

         17  their property be included in any expansion of the

         18  program.

         19                 These requests encouraged SIEDC to

         20  make its West Shore Empire Zone contiguous to the

         21  existing North Shore Empire Zone.

         22                 To further enable members of Staten

         23  Island's business and civic community a chance to

         24  comment on the proposed West Shore Empire Zone, a

         25  seminar was held in November 1999 to explain SIEDC's
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          2  efforts to create a new zone. Over 75 business and

          3  community leaders attended the seminar, the

          4  boundaries of the zone were discussed and the

          5  general consensus was reached about the areas to be

          6  included in the zone.

          7                 Lastly, a task force was created to

          8  help prepare the application.

          9                 The following economic development

         10  and human resource goals, and corresponding

         11  implementation plans, detailed in an over 100-page

         12  application for the West Shore Zone, points to the

         13  tremendous impact the zone will have on Staten

         14  Island and the City of New York.

         15                 The primary economic development

         16  goals include reducing the vacancy rate, reducing

         17  unemployment, securing over $500 million of new

         18  public and private investment over the next nine

         19  years, improving the quality of life in the

         20  neighborhoods within the zones, and providing

         21  assistance to minority and woman-owned enterprises.

         22                 Human resource goals include

         23  providing West Shore Empire Zones with well-trained

         24  and qualified workers, promoting linkages between

         25  businesses with employment and training programs,
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          2  providing zone youth with access to opportunities of

          3  internship, mentorship and employment in cooperation

          4  with zone certified businesses.

          5                 In sum, receiving Empire Zone

          6  designation for the West Shore will:

          7                 - help spur the growth of

          8  manufacturing in some of New York City's last vacant

          9  large tracts of developable land.

         10                 - develop the West Shore as a

         11  destination for growing manufacturing and industrial

         12  firms, preventing relocation to other States and

         13  regions.

         14                 - help create a major source of

         15  employment for the community, helping to reduce the

         16  rate of unemployment, poverty and the number of

         17  people living on public assistance.

         18                 - will help arrest the decline in

         19  manufacturing and the loss of blue collar jobs.

         20                 - help remedy some of the structural

         21  imbalances in the economy and New York's labor

         22  market.

         23                 - it will also help level the playing

         24  field with other states by bringing in new tax and

         25  utility incentives.
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          2                 - lastly, the proposed West Shore

          3  Empire Zone will help ensure that job growth

          4  benefits the local residential community through

          5  linkages with employment and training providers who

          6  are a part of the Zone initiative.

          7                 Again, on behalf of the Staten Island

          8  Economic Development Corporation, I want to thank

          9  you for the opportunity to be with you here today,

         10  and we thank you for your consideration.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Delehanty.

         13                 Can you briefly describe the nature

         14  of the benefits available in an Empire Zone?

         15                 MR. DELEHANTY: I would like my

         16  colleague James Anderson, who in addition to being

         17  Associate Director, is also the Zone Coordinator.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Mr. Anderson.

         19                 MR. ANDERSON: Chairman, the

         20  incentives offered by the program start with wage

         21  tax credits for business that are expanding. Also,

         22  tax incentives where they would make investments in

         23  both property and equipment would net them back a

         24  tax credit, and also if they increased their

         25  employment, a secondary benefit over a three-year
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          2  period.

          3                 Also, utility discounts, again where

          4  KeySpan can offer up to 25 to 30 percent off their

          5  energy cost, as well as Verizon kicking in a five

          6  percent land line use. But most important, as was

          7  described in the statement, is that because of the

          8  effort of Staten Island EDC's effort to create its

          9  own capital corporation, there are financial

         10  instruments, and this is critical to many of the

         11  start-up and small businesses in a particular area

         12  where they are looking for financing.

         13                 The program offers gap financing in

         14  its these capital corporations where we have enticed

         15  investors from the banking community to create this

         16  loan fund for start-up businesses that normally just

         17  fall short of the conventional financing.

         18                 So, with the financing together to

         19  help the start-up with small businesses, and also to

         20  assist larger mid-sized to large companies that need

         21  to have real estate acquisition, equipment

         22  investments, to kick in these tax incentives is

         23  necessary for their growth.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Good. Very

         25  good.
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          2                 What type of businesses do you expect

          3  to be eligible for assistance under this zone? Is it

          4  limited only to industrial and commercial

          5  businesses?

          6                 MR. ANDERSON: No, it is not. With

          7  some of the changes in 1999, the investment tax

          8  credit, when it was originally written in the

          9  Legislature, was geared towards industrial

         10  manufacturers. In 1999 the legislation changed to

         11  also include the financial services industry, which

         12  is a very large-growing segment right now.

         13                 So, they, too, exercise the

         14  investment tax, but the wage tax credits that are

         15  available are for all businesses, retail included.

         16  So, a retail business can exercise the wage tax

         17  credit, the utility credit, and, also, if they need

         18  to expand the property, the cost of the brick and

         19  mortar and material is also offset by a state

         20  portion of the four percent of the tax being

         21  exempted, and, again, because of the change from the

         22  Economic Development Zone and the Empire Zone, what

         23  is key now, starting in 2001 and running for 15

         24  years, three new incentives will enable them to now

         25  offset their State Corporate franchise tax to zero,
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          2  have tax credits against the total real estate

          3  property taxes that they pay, and also have a sales

          4  and use tax expanded to the tangible personal

          5  property, meaning that a business who buys a

          6  paperclip, office furniture or trucks that support

          7  that business, could also have the same four percent

          8  state portion of the tax exempt.

          9                 This is very keen cutting the cost.

         10  If we are looking to promote the small business

         11  sector specifically in Mariners Harbor and Port

         12  Ivory, along Forest Avenue, for years where the

         13  development has been stagnant, this zone is

         14  definitely going to help the small businesses, as

         15  well as the larger projects that are also included

         16  where you want to develop -- where we are looking at

         17  development of office buildings, of a hotel center

         18  that will also provide employment, at the same time

         19  cut those taxes.

         20                 MR. DELEHANTY: Mr. Chairman, I just

         21  would like to add to that.

         22                 As my colleague noted, there have

         23  been new incentives introduced to the program which

         24  have sparked a lot of new interest in the program,

         25  which is evidenced by the number of firms now
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          2  applying to become certified in the North Shore. We

          3  our new financial incentives that we administer with

          4  our zone bank, I would like to add that those loans,

          5  when we consider them, those are tied specifically

          6  towards job creation. For each $15,000 we loan out,

          7  we want to see at least one job created.

          8                 The loan I made reference to for West

          9  African immigrant business, for $25,000, that is a

         10  small family business which is at least going to add

         11  one new job.

         12                 Another loan that we are making as we

         13  speak for a transportation business, is a larger

         14  loan for $200,000, which is going to allow the owner

         15  to buy new property, and this gentleman hires from

         16  the community. These are jobs that are created by

         17  and for zoned residents.

         18                 The last thing I wanted to add is, I

         19  know of the Council's interest in minority and women

         20  business enterprises, our Staten Island EDC has just

         21  launched a program privately funded for those types

         22  of businesses and we will be making a special effort

         23  to involve the typically smaller businesses that

         24  represent those communities.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, very
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          2  good.

          3                 Any questions from the Committee

          4  members?

          5                 Okay, Councilman Fiala.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Mr. Chair, just

          7  one question. I have a meeting downstairs that I

          8  have to get to.

          9                 I want to thank you for your

         10  testimony and all that you are doing in Staten

         11  Island.

         12                 I am here just to urge my colleagues

         13  to support your measurement.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, I don't think that

         15  there is a more important public policy statement

         16  that can be made than for government to help create

         17  a private sector job, and you did that with the

         18  North Shore zone, where we have more than a quarter

         19  billion dollars invested in that area so we can

         20  replicate that here and start to address the

         21  socioeconomic disparities that exist in that area.

         22                 One question is, what is your

         23  confidence level? Are there folks lined up out

         24  there? Have there been expressions of interest,

         25  companies saying if you do this we are ready to move
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          2  in, we are ready to turn a key and turn on a job?

          3                 MR. DELEHANTY: Yes. I would just like

          4  to add that the Staten Island EDC, together with our

          5  colleagues at DBS, we have been working on this

          6  project for over two years now, we have involved

          7  community business and civic leaders in it every

          8  step of the way, and particularly over the last four

          9  to six months when the new State incentives have

         10  kicked in, seminars that we have run, with the zone

         11  bank that we have launched, and with the task force

         12  that we worked on, comprised of over 15 business and

         13  civic leaders, there is a groundswell of interest

         14  and support and we believe that it will lead to, as

         15  I mentioned 400 businesses that we have identified

         16  in this zone who are eligible, a significant number

         17  applying for certification, which will lastly

         18  benefit also the North Shore, because, again, it

         19  will be that interest as a community as a whole.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         22  Councilman Fiala.

         23                 Councilwoman Eldridge.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I just

         25  wanted to ask, in the Fiscal Impact Statement it
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          2  says it is a collection of State and City tax

          3  incentives, and my colleague explains to me, and we

          4  have decided that is the rationalization, that these

          5  would be, the revenues that are generated from this

          6  would not have happened without the expansion. I

          7  mean, how can there not be a Fiscal Impact Statement

          8  if we are giving up sales tax? Are you just saying

          9  we are giving up the sales tax because without the

         10  incentive we wouldn't have had that revenue to begin

         11  with?

         12                 MR. GLATTER: The sales tax is

         13  actually at this point a state sales tax, not the

         14  City's portion. In fact, the City does, if it wants

         15  to, have the opportunity to opt in on an annual

         16  basis to remove the City's share of the sales tax to

         17  business that are located in the zone that are

         18  increasing employment, and probably our first chance

         19  to do that now will be the next year, not for this

         20  year.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, what is

         22  the City tax incentives that are being given?

         23                 MR. GLATTER: Well, it is the basic

         24  package that the City normally gives, the ICIP

         25  incentives, the Energy Cost Savings Program, the
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          2  reprogram, those are all programs that are available

          3  to companies that are located within the zone.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And would

          5  the ICIP kind of, that incentive would be for new

          6  construction as well as renovation?

          7                 MR. GLATTER: Standard City ICIP, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: ICIP is for

          9  renovation?

         10                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, it depends on the

         11  level of renovation you are doing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, it is

         13  not a difference in the regulation?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: No.

         15                 But there would be an additional

         16  state benefit that is given to businesses that are

         17  expanding employment and making renovations of zone

         18  certified.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         20                 Have we had an accounting of what has

         21  happened in the other zones in the City? Could we

         22  have a hearing on that to learn what actually is the

         23  effectiveness, and what they have done?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes, we will.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You are

          3  welcome.

          4                 Do you gentlemen believe that

          5  creating a West Shore Empire Zone will create

          6  hundreds of new jobs?

          7                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

          8                 MR. DELEHANTY: Yes, that is correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And that this

         10  new economic opportunity will help revitalize these

         11  communities?

         12                 MR. DELEHANTY: Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And create

         14  real hope for the future?

         15                 MR. DELEHANTY: Absolutely.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: So do I.

         17                 Call for the vote.

         18                 MR. TURNER: The vote for the

         19  preconsidered introduction for the creation of the

         20  West Shore Empire Zone, already voting in the

         21  affirmative are DiBrienza and Fisher, Council Member

         22  Eldridge.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Aye.

         24                 MR. TURNER: Council Member Rodriguez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.
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          2                 MR. TURNER: Council Member Golden.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: If I may be

          4  excused?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes, you may.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Only if I can

          7  get Mr. Anderson back into Bayridge to do some of my

          8  community outreach programs; is that a commitment,

          9  Mr. Anderson?

         10                 MR. ANDERSON: In due time.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: No, no, no, I

         12  want a commitment now. You are going to give me some

         13  commitment in Bayridge?

         14                 MR. ANDERSON: I give you the

         15  commitment.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I vote aye,

         17  sir.

         18                 Thank you. Good job.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You're fired.

         20                 MR. TURNER: We are joined by Council

         21  Member White, we will give him an opportunity to

         22  review and leave the record open at this point.

         23                 Chairman O'Donovan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: That's an
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          2  affirmative vote from Council Member White.

          3                 I just want to say that it is a good

          4  day for Staten Island and the City of New York.

          5  Congratulations. Aye.

          6                 This hearing is --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman,

          8  may I be placed on the bill?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes, Council

         11  Member White.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: After being

         13  briefed, and having read this before arriving, I

         14  vote aye.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         16  Council Member.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Council Member

         19  Golden.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: May I be

         21  placed on the bill? My name be placed on the bill at

         22  this time?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Myself

         25  likewise, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And we will

          3  leave it open for Councilwoman Clarke and Councilman

          4  Carrion also.

          5                 This hearing is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 1:55 p.m.)
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